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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
Fritzmeier Motherson Cabin Engineering Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Fritzmeier
Motherson Cabin Engineering Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “ Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other
comprehensive income its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our
report.

Other Information or another title if appropriate, such as “Information Other
than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not
include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with [the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended]. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Act, based on our audit. We give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books and proper
returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been received;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
accounts;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B” to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023
has been paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;
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(h) With resgg&m&gRﬁpeA%E%JrNMS‘&érs to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note No. 38.A to the Ind
AS financial statements;

The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term
contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended March 31,
2023;

There is no amount which were required to be transferred to Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.
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v. (a) 'I%e Eompany has proposed dividend in the previous year thus company

has paid any final dividend during year.

(b) The Company has not paid any interim dividend declared and paid by the
Company during the year.

(c) The Board of Directors of the Company has not proposed any final
dividend for the year.

Manoj Gupta
Partner

(Membership No. 096776)
UDIN: 226941716 R8Q¢&n 181

Place: Newa Sellx
Date: l&’]o{\%}g
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Referred to in paragraph 1 under
‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of
Fritzmeier Motherson Cabin Engineering Private Limited of even date)

(i)

(ii)

1). The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

2). The Company has no intangibles assets during the year; therefore this clause for
disclosure of proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of
physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and
equipment are verified every year. In accordance with this programme, certain property,
plant and equipment were verified during the year on 31 March, 2023. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other
than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are
duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the
name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
year.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been physically
verified by the management during the year. For stocks lying with third parties at the year-
end, written confirmations have been obtained and for goods-in-transit subsequent
evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory recogds. In our opinion, the frequency of




R.N. MARWAH & CO. LLP

(iii).

(iv).

(v).

(vi).

(vii).
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such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management
were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical
stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of
inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions
on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements
filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the
books of account of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments,
provided guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties
during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments
nor has it given loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 for the products manufactured by it, where turnover is more than Rupees hundred
Crore. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made
and maintained the cost records for its manufactured goods (and/or services provided by it)
as prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
and Cost Auditor has also been appointed for Financial Year 2022-23. However, we have not
carried out a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether these
are accurate or complete.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books
of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax
(‘GST’), Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess




R.N. MARWAH & CO. LLP

(viii).

(ix)
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and other statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the company with the
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, statutory dues relating to
Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of
Customs or Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of

any dispute are as follows:

Name of the | Nature ofthe| Amount (Rs.) Period to Forum where dispute Remarks, if
statute dues which the is pending any

amount
relates

The Central | Excise Duty | Rs.10.3 Mns 2010-11to | CESTAT

Excise Act, 2014-15

1944

Tamil Nadu | Value Rs.2.6 Mns 2014-15 Chennai High Court

Value Added Tax

Added Tax

Act,2006

According to the information and explanations given to us

and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed
any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to banks or
financial institutions during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were
obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis

have been used for long-term purposes by fhe company.
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According to the information and explanations givén to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined
under Companies Act, 2013).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government.

Establishment of vigil mechanism is not mandated for the Company. We have taken into
consideration the whistle blower complaints received under the vigil mechanism
established voluntarily by the Company during the year and shared with us while
determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. As represented to us
by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions
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(xvii).
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have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the
period under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company is not part of any group. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d)
are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.
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(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) .In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
pursuant to any project other than ongoing projects. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xxi)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination, no consolidated financial statements are to be prepared of the Company.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xxi) of the Order are not applicable.

wah & Co. LLP
ountants
ration No. 001211N/N500019)

Manoj Gupta
Partner

(Membership No. 096776)
UDIN: 2202611600 ALY <

Place:  (Uesso I~
Date: ‘qbg\hp,z
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Annexure-B

Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Fritzmeier
Motherson Cabin Engineering Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31,
2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI"”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial sfatements, whether due to fraud or
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error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error oOF fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the criteria for
internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

anoj Gup,ta
Partner
(Membership No. 096776

UDIN: 22086717680 éhw g1<

Place: pNjesns De A
Date: ) ¢y ¢] 2022,
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CIN: URIDUBDL2007PTCI62125
Ralance sheet as on March 31, 2023
(A ammounte in Mo JINRY, undess othorwise stated)

Asat
Note
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
ASSETS
Non-cument sssets
Property, plant and equipment 601 534

3
Capltal work In progress 3
Right-af-use assels 3a $ 3
intangible assets 4
Financial assets

i Investments 5 - -

{i. Other financial assets & 10 #
Other non-curent assets 2 & 4
Yotal non-current assets 524 a3
Current gssets
inventoties 8 334 287
Financlal aysets

i Trade receivables 9 238 177

i, Cash and cash equivalents 10 1 1
Corrent 1ax assets {nat) 18 2 3
Qther current assets 1 10 B
Total current assets 585 A7
Tote! assets “323 )‘9_5_'
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equfty share caphal i2 500 500
Other equity 13 276 147
Toral rquity 770 547
Uablfitles

Non-current lsbifities
Financlal Habifitles

L8orrowings 14 45 a3
fi Lease fistillities 142 4 2
Provistans
Employee beanefit obligations 16 4 3
Deferred tax liabiities {net} 162 38 2
Total non-current Nabllitles 82 120

Lurrent Habilities
Flranclal Labiives

I, Borrowings 17 153 179
1. Trade payables 18
Totaf outstanding dues of miero enterprises and small enterprisas; and 2% 13
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than milern enterprises and 111 114
smalf entesprises
i, Other financtal Habliities 15 3 4
Iy, Lease fiabilities 152 H 1
Employee benefit obligations 16 8 ¢
Other current labilities b 58 s
Yotal current Habilitles 37 68
Total Habititles 439 488
A
Totat wguity snd fabllitles baiid L
Surmmary of slignificant sccounting policles 2
The sccompanying notes are an integral pant of the financlel statements.
For and on behall of the Roard pet pur report attathed
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Frli | Cabin Engl
CIN: U31908DL20079TC162125

g Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March3l, 2023

{Al mmouiits In Mn HINR} , untess otherwise stated}

For the year ended
Note
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue
Revenue from operations 21 1,300 1,134
Other income 22 0 3
Total Income 1,900 1,435
Expenses
Cost of materlals consumed 23 1,052 638
Changes In inventory of finished goods and work-in-progress 24 14 48
Employer benefits expense 25 287 225
Degprecistion and amortization expanse 383m 55 43
Finance costs 26 27 18
Other expanses 27 s 17
Totat expenses 3,710 1057
Profit before exceptional Rems i9e 78
Exceptional items {income)/ expense . .
Profit before tax 180 78
Tax expenses
Current tax 28 45 14
Less: MAT crodit antitiomant 163 - -
Net current tax 43 14
MAT credit entitiement for eariler years o -
Short/{excess) proviston for sarller years i 0
-Deferred tax expense/ {credit) 16a 4
Total tax expense 54 z
Profit for the year 136 5
Other comprebensive {Income} / Loss « i
ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
R ts of post-employ benefit oblig 2 {3)
D dtaxon R of past-employment benefit obi o 1
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2 1]
Tuotal zomprehensive income for the year 134 57
Earnings per share: {Refer Note 28}
Nominal value per share: Rs. 10/~ {Previous year : Rs 10/} 28
Basic 132
Dlluted 112
S y of significant ing policies 2

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financist statements,
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Fritzmeier Motherson Cabin Engineering Private Limited

CiN: U31908DL2007PTC162125

Statement of changes In equity for the ended March 31, 2023

Al amounts in Mn {INR] , unless otherwise staiet)

A. Equity share caplial Notes Amount
As at March 31, 2021 12 500
Changes In Equity Share capital .
As at March 31, 2022 500
Changes in Equity Share capltal -
As at March 31, 2023 500
B, Other equity Note Amount
Retalned earnings
Balance as at March 31, 2021 i3 98
Profit for the year 57
Other comprehensive income i
Total comprehensive Income for the year 58
Dividend paid {8}
Tax on Dividend -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 147
profit for the year 136
Other comprehensive income (2}
Total comprehensive Income for the year 134
Dividend paid {11}
Tax on Dividend e
Balance as at March 31, 2023 270

The abové statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanyling notes are an Integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board

Georg Fritzmeier
Director
DIN 01099055
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LOO & Manager
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Director
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CFO
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Nehas Mahawar
Company Secretary
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Mano} Gupta
Partner
M. No.0S6776
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Date : ’S 0()%1/3

UBIN: 2205677680 KR 0Ig ¢




Fritzmeler Motherson Cabln Engineering Private Uimited
CIN: U31908DL2007PTC162125
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al arnounts in M NRY, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Net profit before tax 180 78
Adjustments for:
Other comprehensive income including employee benefit obligation {1} {1}
Depreciation & Amortisation 55 43
Provision for Bad debts 3
Provision for inventory 1 1
Interest Income (0} {1}
Finance cost 27 18
Unrealised foreign exchange {gain)/loss (net} 0 {0}
Operating profit before working capital changes 275 138
Change In working Capital:
Increase/{Decrease) in Trade Payables {2) {21}
Increase/{Decrease) In Other Payables 1 {8}
increase/{Decrease) in Other Current Labilities 7 {5}
{increase)/Decrease In Trade Recelvables {64} 61
{increase)/Decrease In inventorles {48} {65}
{Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets {1) 3
{Increase)/Decrease In Other non current assets {8) {1}
Cash generated from operations 180 102
- Taxes paid {38} {16}
income tax refund 3 L
Net cash generated from operations 125 85
B. Cashflow from Investing activities:
Payments for property, plantequipment and CWip {10} {118}
interest recelved 4] {0}
Net cash used In Investing activities {10} {118)
€. Cashflow from financing activities: _
interest pald 27 -18
Proceeds from long term borrowings {54} 20
Dividend paid (11) -9
Repayment of other short term borrowings {21) 33
Repayment of Lease liability {2} -1

Net cash used In financing activities {115} 25




Net increase/{Decrease} In Cash & Cash Equivalents
Net Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equlvalents
Net Cash and cash equlvalents as at current year closing

Cash and cash equlvalents comprise of the following {Note 10}
Cash on hand

Cheques / drafts on hang

Balances with banks

Less: Bank overdraft / cash credit

Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet
effect of exchange differences on balances with banks In forelgn currency
Total

{0) -

1 1
1 1
0 8]
1 1
1 1
1 1

Notes:

1} The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method”™ as set out in Indian Accounting

Flows”.
1} Figures in brackets indicate Cash Outflow.

For and on behalf of the Board

Georg Frltzmeler V¢ Sebgal
Director Director
DIN 01099055 DIN 00291126
CI‘ cm;& anan ¥ Sampathkumar
L0 & Manager CFO
PANIACMPTAIDOP PAN;AWEPKS971E
Neke \{%
Neha Mahawar
Company Secretary

M NO. ACS 25144

andard-7, “Statement of Cash

Mano} Gupta
Partner
M. No. 096776

Place: 'J o

Date : Oc'%’b}
UpIN: 22096776650 QR»(& €




Fritzmeler

X ey

son Cabln Engl ing Private Umited

CIN: U31908DL2007PTC162125
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts In M {INR}, unfess otherwise stated)

1 Corporate Information

2.

{a

ib,

{c!

{d

P

—

—

The Company was incorporated on April 16, 2007 pursuant to a joint venture agreement between F Holding GmbH, Austria, a company incorporated in Austria
and Samvardhana Motherson International Limited, a company incorporated in India. F Holding GmbH and Samvardhana Motherson international Limited
along with its associates hold 50% and 50% of the shareholding respectively In the company, The company is engaged in manufacturing of driver cabins for off-
highway vehicles, On 20th March 2023, Samvardhana Motherson International Limited had acquired 50% of holding from F Holding Gmbt, Austria,

Significant accounting policles
Baslks of preparation
Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared i accordance with Indian Accounting standards {ind AS) notified under the Companies {indian
Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 {as amended from time to time}.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the foflowing assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or
revalued amount:

o Certain financlal assets and Habilities measured at fair value {refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) and

= Defined bensfit pension plans - plan assets measured at fair value

The financial statemants are presented in Mn {INR}, except when otherwise indicated.
Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported In @ mannec consistent with the internal reporting to the Chief Operating Officer “CON" of the Company. Tha COO I
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segrnents. The Company has monthly review and forecasting procedure in
place and COO raviews the operations of the Company as a whole.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities In the balance sheet based on current/ nencurrent classification. An asset is treated as current when it is
» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold ot consumed in normal operating cycle

» Hetd primarnily for the purpose of trading

« Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« Cash o cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liabllity for at least twelve months after the reporting pericd

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Allability is current when:

» |t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

o it is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the fiability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other fisbilities 2s non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Forelgn cureencles

{i} Functional and presentation currency
The Company'’s functional currency is Indian Rupee and the financial statements are presented in Mn {indian Rupee} .




Fritzmeler Motherson Cabln Englneering Private Limited

CIN: U31808DL2007PTC162125

Notes ta the finandal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{ii) Transactions and balances

Forelgn currency transactions are transiated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the trapslation of monetary assets and liabifities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in other comprehensive income if they relate to
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Forelgn exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing cost are presented in the Statement of Profit and Lass, within finance costs. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other income or other expenses.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value In a foreign currericy are transtated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at falr value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss, For example,
transiation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in pr ofit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments (other than (nvestment in subsidiaries, joint ventires
and associates) classified as FVOU! are recognised in other comprehensive income,

{e} Revenue recognition
The cornpany recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as set out in IND AS 115
Step 1. Identify contract{s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations
and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.
Step 2. Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation 1s a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the
customer.
Step 3. Determine the transaction price; The transaction price is the amount of consideration te which the company expects to be entitled In exchange for
transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties
Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations I the contract: For a contract that has maore than one performance obligation, the
cormpany allocates the transaction price to each perfarmance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the company expects
to be entitled in exchange for satisfylng each performance obligation,

Step 5. Recognise revenue when {or as) the company satisfies a performance obligation,

The campany satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criterla s met
{a) The company’s performance does net create an asset with an slternate use to the company and the company has an enforceable right ta payment for
performance completed to date

{b} The company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced.
{¢) The custorner simultanecusly receives and consumes the benefits provided by the company’s perfarmance as the company performs.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is racopnised a1 the point in time at which the performance obligation is
satisfied,

When the company satisfies 2 performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services it creates a contract based asset on the amount of
consideration earned by the performance, Where the amount of consideration received from a customer exceeds the amount of revenue recognised this gives
rise to a contract liability.

Revenus is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding
taxes and duty. The company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific eriteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agant.

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 1o the company and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably.

Sale of goods:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.
Sales are recognised at single point of time when the control of goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of contract,

Sale of services:

Revenues from the sale of services are recorded at single point of time when the performace obligation as per contract has been satisfied.

interest income

Interest is recognised using the effective Interest rate {EIR) method, 25 income for the period in which it occurs. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the
amortised cost of a financial liability, When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractus! terms of financial Instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, charges, call and similar options) but does not consider expected credit
losses,

{f} Income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the pericd is the tax payable an the current period’s taxable Income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken In tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. it
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.




Fritzmeler Motherson Cabin Engineering Private Limited
CIN: U31808DL2007PTC162125
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{8

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temperary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the standalone financial statements, Deferred income tax Is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability ina
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss. Deferred income tax Is
determined using tax rates {and laws] that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the defetred income tax liabllity is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for afl deductible temporary differences only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabllities are offset when there Is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax flabilities are offset where the entity has a fegally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liabifity simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognlsed in profit or loss, except to the extent that It relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income ar directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other cornprehensive income or directly In equity, respectively.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease.
The arrangement is, or contains, a lease If fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right Is not explicitly specified Jn an arrangement.

As a Lessee

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for shortterm leases and leases of low-value assets. The company
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the undetlying assets.

B Right-of-use assets

The company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {L.e., the date the underlylng asset is avatlable for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment fosses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lcase Hiabilities recognised, inftial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, 3s follows:

» Motor vehicles and other equipment’s 010 §years.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the fease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation Is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset,

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2 {h} impalrment of non-financial assets

13} tease Liabilitles.

At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognises lease Habilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments {including in substance fixed payments) Jess any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an Index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The iease payments
also Include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Varlable lease payments that do not depend on sn index or &
rate are recognised as expenses {unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its Incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the Jease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease fiabilities ¥s increased to reflact
the accretion of Interest and reduced for the lease payments made. in addition, the carrying amount of lease fiabilities is re-measured if thereis a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments {e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change In the assessment of an option to pu rchase the underlying asset.

The company’s lease Hiabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

i1} Short-term leases and Jeases of low-value assets

The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption toits short-term leases of machinery and equipment {i.e., those leases that have
alease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contaln a purchase option). it also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

«  Quantitative disclosures and other disclosures are at Note 39

As a Lessor




Fritzmeler Motherson Cabin Engineering Private Limited
CIN: U31908D12007PTC162125
Notes ta the financial statemeats for the year ended March 31, 2023
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Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor Is recognised in income on a straight-fine basis over the lease term unless the
receipts are structured to increase in fine with expected general inflation to compensate the lessor for the expected inflationary cost increases, The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their respective nature,

Impalrment of non-financlal assets

The Company assesses, at each reparting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. if any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of anasset’s or
cash-generating unit's {CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or companys of assets, When the carrying amount of an asset ar CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
inte account, if no such transactions can be ldentified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companles or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to
which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years, For longer perlods, a fong-term growth
rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year, To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash How projections In the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or
countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used. impairment losses including impalrment on inventories, are recognised in
the statement of profit and Joss.

Far assets excluding goodwill, sn Is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses no longer exist or have decreased, If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or C6U's recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss Is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable ameunt, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at the end of the financial year at the CGU level, as appropriate, and when
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet cornprise cash at banks and on hand short term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Trade recelvables

Trade receivables are the amount due from customers for goods or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If coltection is expectedin one year or
less { or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets, If not, they are presented as nop-current assets.

Trade receivables are initially recognise at fair value plus transaction cost. Trade receivables are measured at amortized cost using effective interest method
less any necessary write downs,

Inventory
Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net reafisable value,

Cost of raw material and traded goods comprise cast of purchase and Is determined after rebate and discounts. Cost of work in progress and finished goods
comprises direct materials, direct lsbour and an appropriste proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the bais of
normal operating capacity.




Fritzmeler Maotherson Cabln Englneering Private Uimited

CIN: U315080L2007PTC162125

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
Cost of inventories also Includes all other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to thelr present location and condition. Cost includes the reclassification from
equity of sny names or lossess on qualifying cash flow hedges relating to purczhse of raw material but excludes borrowing costs. Costs are determined on
weighted average cost basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated sclling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated casts necessary (o
mzke the sale.




Fritzmeler Motherson Cablo Englneering Private Umited
Cit: U3IS08DLZ007PTC162125
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{i} Financlalinstruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liabifity or equity instrument of another entity.

Financlal assets

initlal recog and ement

Al financial assets are recognised Initlally at fair value plus, in the case of financlal assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financlal asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation o convention In the market place {regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, Le., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

* Debt instruments at atmortised cost

» Debt instruments at falr value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCH

» Debt instrurnents, derlvatives and equity Instruments at fair value through profit or loss {FYTPLY
« Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCH)

Debt Instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

) The asset Is held within a business model whose objective Is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {5PPI) on the principal amount
outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR} methed. Amortised cost Is
caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees of costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the profit or foss, The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss, This category generally applles to trade and other
recalvables,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
Debt Instrument at FVTOC!

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOC! if both of the following criteria are meat:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b} The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI,

Debt Instruments included within the FVTOCU! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in other comprehensive income {OCI). Howaver, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain
or loss In the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or Joss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to
statement of profit and joss. interest earned whilst holding FYTOCI debt instrument is reported 2s interest incore in statement of profit and loss using the EIR
methed.

Debtinstroment st FVIPL

FVTPL s a residual category for debt Instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categerization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCL, is
classified as at FVTPL

Iri addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost ar FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL, However, such
election Is allowed only If doing so reduces or efiminates a measurement or recognition Inconsistency (referred to as “accounting mismateh'). The Company has
not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL,

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity lnvestments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at falr value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised

by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an

irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes In the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis, The classification is made on initial recognition and Is irrevacable.

I the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTQC!, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the
OCL. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCH ta PEL, even on sale of investment, However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.

Equity instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L,

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset of part of a company of similar financial assets} is primarily derecognised {L.e. removed from

the Company's balance sheet) when:

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘passthrough’ arrangement and either {a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or {b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing Involvement. In that case,
the Company also recognises an associated Jiability. The transferred asset and the associated Hability are measured on a basls that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retalned.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the Jower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
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Impatrment of financlal assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following
financial assets and eredit risk exposure:
a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g,, loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

by Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOC!
¢} Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions.

dj Loant commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL
&) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
The application of simplified spproach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss alfowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reposting date, right from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk since Initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL s used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves suchs that there is no fonger a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument, The 12-month ECL s 3
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive {i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal} recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense In the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This
amount Is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is describad below:

» Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL 13 presented as an allowance, je., as an
integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The alfowance reduces the net carrying amount. Unti the asset meets write-off
criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

» Loan commitments and financisl guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as s provision in the balance sheet, {.e. as a Hability, Debt instruments measured
8t FVTOCH For debt instruments measured at FVOC), the expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which remains at
fair value, Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would atise if the asset was measured at amortised cost is recognised In other comprehensive
incorme as the ‘accumulated impairmeant amount’.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired {POCH) financial assets, Le., financial assets which are credit impaired an purchase/
origination.

Flnanclal labilites
initlal recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at Inittal recognition, as financial Hiabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derlvatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate,

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,
The Company’s financial labilities Include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and
derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on thelr classification, as described bejow:

Financial Habllities at falr value through profitor loss

Financial Habifities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial iabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financisl instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 108, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Galns of lasses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or foss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For labilities designoted Ind AS as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in
OCL. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative galn or loss within equity, All other changes
in fair value of such fiability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through
profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings
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Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
This Is the categary most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Galns and losses sre recognised in profit or loss when the liabllities ave derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost Is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation Is included as finance costs In the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings and other payables.

Flnanclal guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to relmburse the holder for a foss it incurs because
the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due In accordance with the terms of a debt Instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially
as a llability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the Issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liabifity is measured at
the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation,

Derecognition

A financial fiability is derecognised when the obligation under the lability is discharged or cancelled or explres, When an existing financial Habillty is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing Hability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
s treated as the derecognition of the original ability and the recognition of a new fiabllity. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised In
the statement of profit and loss,
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{m}

Embedded derlvatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid {combined) instrument that also includes a nonderivative host contract — with the effect that some of the
cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar 1o a stand-alone derivative, An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that
otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial Instrument price, commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of 2 non-financial variable that the variable is not
specific to a party to the contract, Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of 2 financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that s a financial asset within the scope of ind AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it
applies the classification requirements contalned In Ind AS 109 to the entlre hybrid contract, Derlvatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for
23 separate derivatives and recorded at falr value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely refated to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or luss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair vatue with changes in falr
value recognised in statement of profit and loss, unless designated as effective hedging Instruments,

Off setting of finandcial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there Is 3 currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there Is an intention to settle on a net basls, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

fFalr value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Falr value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a fiabifity in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The falr value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lability takes place either:

» in the principal market for the asset or iability, or

. tn the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or fiability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or 2 liabllity is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset o lability, sssuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-inancial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by seffing it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising
the use of relevant observable Inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the falr value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices In active markets for identical assets or liabilities
* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest fevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and abilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recutring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
fevels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement asa whole) at the end of
each reporting period,

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets
measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such a5 assets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values
of assets and hiabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabllitiez on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the
asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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Property, Plant and equipment

Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment fosses, Iif any. Capital work ins progress are
stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes expenditure that is directly atiributable to the acquisition of the items and the
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for fong-tenm construction projects if the recognition criteria ace met. When significant
parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise,
when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied, All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2017
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of property, plant and equipment. )

The cost of self-generated assets comprises of raw material, components, direct labour, other direct cost and related production overheads.
Depreciation methods and useful lives

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of the assets & Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the
asset is available for use, while no dpreciation Is charged In the month the assets iz disposed off

Assets tiseful life
Freehold Land it
{Building Factory 30 years
Plant & machinery 3,67 Years
Plant & machinery {Secondhand} 4 years
Plant 8 machinery (Racks Stands & Trolleys) 1year
Furniture & fistures £ ysars
Electrical installations 10 Years
Office equipment S years
Computers 3years
Vehicles 4 years
Software 3years

*Useful fife of these assets are lower than the life prescribed under Schedule il to the Companies Act, 2013 and those has been determined based on an
assessment performed by the management of expected usage of these assets. The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An ftem of property, plant and equipment snd sny significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when 1o future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or Joss arising on derecognition of the asset {calcufated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset} is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, usefu! lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each finencial vear end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate,

Boriowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, Any difference
between the proceeds {net of transactions costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the profit or loss over the period of borrowing using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of joan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that Is probable that same or all
of the faclfity will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down oceurs, To the extent there s no evidence that itis probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services or amortised over the period of the factlity to which it relates,

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial llability that has been extingulshed or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, Is recognised in profit or Joss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are reclassified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of a fiability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.

Borrowling costs

Genaral and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributle to the acquisition, construction o production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the
period of the time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for Its intended use or sale, Qualifying assets are the assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for the intended use or sale.

Other borrowings costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred

Provislons and coantingent llabilitles

Provisions

Provisions for fegal claims, product warranties and make good obligations are recognised when the Company has & present {legal or constructive) obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses,
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Where there are 3 number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required ir settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect 1o any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be smali,

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as 2
separate asset, but only when the relmbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of
any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when apprapriate, the risks specific to
the fiability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost,

Contingent Liabilitles

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising fromn past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events
where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or 1 reliable estimate of the amount cannot be mate,

Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees rendsr the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected 1o be paid when the liabilities are settled. The lisbllities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet,

Provident Fund
Contribution towards provident fund for employees is made to the regulatory authoritles, where the Company has no further obligations, Such benefits are
dlassified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the rantributions made an s monthly basic. The
company recognizes contribution payable to the pravident fund scheme as expenditure in the statement of profit and loss, when an employee renders the
related service,

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan {the "Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972. The Gratuity Plan provides 3 lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount
based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The gratuity plan in Company is funded through annual contributions to Life
insurance Corporation of india {LIC) under its Compary’s Gratuity Scheme whereas others are not funded.

The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end
of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets, The Company’s liability Is actuarially determined {using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of
each year, The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using Interest rates of
g 1t bonds, R ement galns and losses arising from experlence

adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or creditad to equity in other comprehensive incorne in the period in which they arise, They are
included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Past-service costs are recognised immediately In income.

Compensated Absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be svailed or encashed within 12 months from the end of the year end are treated as short term
employee benefits, The obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additiona] amount
expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

'

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year end are treated as other long
term employee benefits, The Company's lability is actuarislly determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation Is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government bonds. Re-measurement
gains and losses arising from esperience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in statement of profit of loss in the period in which
they arise, Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income.

Dividends
Dividends and interim dividends payable to a Company's shareholders are recognized as changes in equity in the period in which they are approved in the
shareholders’ meeting and the Board of Directors respectively.
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Earnlngs per share

{i} Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calcutated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the perlod, Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to
participate In dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have changed the number
of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources,

{ii} Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per shase adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share {o take Into accounts

. the after incame tax effect of interest and other financing costs assaciated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

- The weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assurning the conversion of alt dilutive potential equity
shares.

Critical estimates and judgements
The presentation of a financial statements require the use of accounting estimates, which by definition, will seldom equal the actual results, Management also
needs to exercise judgements in applying the companys accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of all the areas that are involved a higher degree of judgement ot cormplexity, and of items which are more likely to be
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally sssessed. Detailed information sbout each of these
estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected fine item in financial
staternents

‘The areas involving critical estimates and fudgemants are:

- Estimation of current tax expenses and payable - Note 28

- Estimated of fair value of unlisted securities - Note 30

- Extimated useful jife of intangible assets - Note 3(b}

- Estimation of defined benefit obligation - Note 16

~ Recognisation of deferred tax assets for carced farward losses - Note 6
Estimtes and judgements are continually evaluated, They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may
have financial impact on the company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Slgnificant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial st s requires manag to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and labilities, the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or habiiities affected in future periods.

Judgements
in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, there are no significant judgernents established by the r 3 A

Estimates arid adjustments

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circurmstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflectad in the sssumptions when
they occur.

i} Useful life of property, plant and equipment
The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and Industry trends for determining the ecanomic Iife of an ssset/component of an asset.
The useful lives are reviewed by management periedically and revised, if appropriate, In case of 8 revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is
charged over the remaining useful life of the assets,

{1} Falr valuation of uniisted securities
When the fair value of unlisted securities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices In active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow {DCF) rodel. The Inputs to these madels are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, 3 degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values, Judgements include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could aff ect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
Refer Note 35 of the financials.

{H}  Taxes
Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable
income. Given the nature of business differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions,
could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates,
The amount of such provisions Is based on various factors, such as expetience of previous tax sudits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by
the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions
prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.
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3a. Right-of-use-assets

{Al amounts in Mn {INR} , unless otherwise stated]

Particulars Plant & Machinery Vehlcles Total

Year ended March 31,2021

Gross caerylng amount

Opening gross carrying amount as at Aprit 01, 2021 3 1 4
Ad) £ in opening bal of account of Ind AS 116 -
Addition duting the yesr B 2 2
Disposal during the yesr - - -
Otheae ndjustment - - «
Closing gross tarrylag amount as st March 33, 2022 3 3 6
Accumulsted depreciation

Opening sccumulated depreciation as at April 01, 2021 2 0 2
{Dnpraciation charge during the year 4] 1 1
Disporals ~ . -
tonpairment foss B “ -
Other adjustrment - .
Clasing sxcumulated depresiation as o March 31, 2022 2 1 3
Net corrying smount 35 at March 31, 2022 1 2 3
Gross careying smount

Opening gross carrying amount as at April 01, 2022 3 3 [
Adju in ing bat on tof ind AS 116 -
Addition during the year - 3 3
Dispasal during the year {2} {1} {3}
Other adjustment. * * *
Closing gross aurrylng smount us of March 31, 2023 1 % 6
Accumstuted depreciation

Opening sceumulated depreciation as ut April 01, 2022 2 1 3
iDeprecistion charge during the year 1 @ : ¥
Disposals 2) i1} 31
Closing scopmadated depreciation as st March 31,2023 1 o 1
Net carrylag sorount as ot March 31, 2023 o3 5 5
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{All amounts In Mn (INR}, unless otherwise stated)

4. Intangible assets

Particulars

Technical
Knowhow Fees

Business and
Commercial
Rights

intellectual
Property Rights

Software

Year ended March 31, 2022

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross canying smount as at Aprii 01, 2021
Addition

Addition on account of scquisition

Disposal

{Closing gross carrylng amount as at March 331, 2022

Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation as at April D1, 2021
Amortisation charge during the year

Disposals

Addition on account of acquisition

impairment loss

Other adjustment

Closing accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2022

Net carrylng amount as at March 31, 2022

Year ended March 31, 2023

Giross carrying smount

Upening pross carrying smount as at Apri 04, 2022
Addition

Addition on account of soquisition

Disposat

Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2023

Accumulfated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation as at April 01, 2022
Amortisation charge during the year

Disposals

Addition on account of acquisition

Impairment loss

Other adjustment

Closing accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2023

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023

* Represents purchased intangible assets

*+ (O transition to Ind AS, the Corapany has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Intangible assets recognised as at April 01,2017 measured as
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of Intangible assets. The original cost of software as on April 1, 2017 Is INR MN

2.66 which has been fully depreciated upto transition date of Ind AS, Hence, the deemed cost of software as on April 1, 2017 is INR Nil




Fritzmeier Motherson Cabin Engineering Private Limited
CIN: U31908DL2007PTC162125
Nutes to the lnanclal statements fur the year erded March 31, 2023

{All amounts in Mn (INR}, unless otherwise stated}

5, Investments

Equity Investments at FVTOC

Investment in 1,40,000 (March 31, 2022: 1,40,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/-

each In M/s Cauvery Power Generation Chennai Pvt, Ltd.
Less:Diminution in Value of Investment at FVTOCI
TOTAL

*purchased In accordance with the terms and conditions and for the purpose of procurement of power from the

Company

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments

6. Other financlal assets

{Unsecured, considered good}
Security Deposits

- Related Parties { Refer note 33 )
- Others

Deposits with gratulty trust

7. Other non-current assets
{Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated}

Capital advances
-Related parties {refer note 33}
-MSME
Deposit towards appeals filed with CESTAT
Prepaid expenses
Gratuity fund {net of provision}

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Total

Total

1 X
{1} {1}
Maech 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Non-current Current Non-<current

- 3 - i
- @ . 5
" % o 0
“ 10 - &

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

v
Inisd NI e

This space Is left blank intentionally
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Fritzmeier Maotherson Cabin Engineering Private Limited
CIN: US1908DL2007PTC162125

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts In Mn {(INR) , unless otherwise stated)

12, Share Capital

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Autharised:
50,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs,10/- each fully paid up 500 500
{March 31, 2023: 50,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

issued, Subscribed and Pald up:

50,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 500 500
{March 31, 2023; 50,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

Total 500 500
a. Movement in equity share caphtal
As at March 31, 2021 50,000,000
Shares issued during the year .
As at March 31, 2022 50,000,000
Shares issued during the year -
As at March 31,2023 50,000,000
Shares issued during the year -
50,000,000

b. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share, Each holder of equity s entitled to one vote per share held. The Company declares and
pays dividends in indian rupees. The dividend, if proposed by the Board of Directors, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting, exceptin case
of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of alt preferential amounts, in
proportion to their share holding.

¢. Details of shares held by the promoters In the Company,

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

% Of Change % Of Change
Equity shares: Hos, - during the year Nos. * during the year
Name of the Promoters '
F Holding GMBH B . 100% 25,000,000 50% NiL
Samvardhana Motherson International Limited {SAMIL)
{ On 20th March 2023, Samvardhana Motherson International Limited(SAMIL) had
acquired 50% of holding from F Holding GmbH, Austria.} 50,000,000  100% 100% 25,000,000  50% NiL

« As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from sharehulders regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represents both tegal and beneficial ownerships of shares.




Fritzmeler Motherson Cabin Engineering Private Limited
CiN: U31908DL2007PTC162125
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts in Mn {INR}, unless otherwise stated)

13 Other equity
{I}) Retained earnings

Opening balance

Profit for the year

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax
Dimunition in Value of Investment at FVTOC!

Deferred tax on Remeasurements of post-employment beneflt
obligations

Final dividend pald

Closing balance

Nature and purpose of reserves:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
147 99
136 56
{2} 3
0 1)
(0} (1}
(11 )
270 147

i. Retained earnings - Retained earnings represents cumulative profits of the Company. This reserve can be utilised in

accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

3

This space is left blank |




Fritzmeler Motherson Cabin Englneering Private Limited
CIN: U31908DL2007PTC162125
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts in Mn {INR} , unless otherwise stated)

14

1da

15

15a

Long-term borrowings

Non Current Portion

March 31, 2023

| March 31,2022

Secured
Term Loans
{ndian rupee loan from banks

TOTAL

46

93

46 |

93

The company obtained a term Joan from HDFC Bank Ltd during the FY2019-20, amounting to Rs. 20,00,00,000/- & FY2021-22,

amounting to Rs.6,90,00,000/-

a. Security

Exclusive charge on the current assets of the company

Exclusive first charge on the movable and immovable fixed assets of the company
b. Other detalls:

Rate of interest p.a.- 8.19% & 7.50%

Repayment: as per sanction letter, in 36 months from November 2020 enwards.
Repayment: as per sanction letter, in 48 months from January 2023 onwards.

Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities

Total

Other financial liabilities

Current

Creditors for capital goods
-Related parties {refer note 33)
-Recoveries against vehicle scheme
-Employee benefits payable

Total

Lease liabilitles
-Lease liabilities
Total

March 31,2023 |  March 31,2022
4 2
5 2

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
- 1
- 0
2 0
3 3
5 4

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1 1
1 1

This space is left blank intentionally




Fritmeler Motherson Cabln Engloeesing Private Umited
CIN: U31308D1 2007 TCI62325
Notes te the financial statements for the year snded March 31, 2023
AB peounts i M RNRE undess otherwdse stated)

16, Ferployen braefis obligutions

e MR B4, 2023 Much 31, 2022
Current Non-current Corrent Non-current

Gratuity . 0 -

Lrave encashment - # ki3 3
Total employea beneflt obligations - 4 9 2
The long term defined employee benefits and i h of the Company are a3 under:

A, Detined Besefit Schaomes

Gratulty
The Company op a gratuity plan d through Uife Comp of india (LIC) under its Group Gratulty Scheme. Every smployee fs entitledto s

tienefit equivalent to fifteen days’ salary last drawn for each completed year of service In Hine with the Payinent of Gratulty Act, 1872, The same is payable al the time of
separation from the Company or retirement, whicheves is earlier. The benefits vest after five years af continsous service. The Company pays contribution to Life
fnsurance Corporation of india to fund its plan,

The reconcifiation of opening and dlosing balances of the present vatue of the defined benefit obligations are as below:
{1} Prosent Value of Deflned Benetit Obfigation For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Dbiigations st year beginnlog 17 17
Survice Cost - Corrant 2 *
interest expense 1 1
Past service cast * v
Amount recognised In profit or loss 3 3

Rerneasurements
Actuarial {gain) / loss from change In demographic assumption * 5 B
Actuarfal {gain} / loss from change In financial assumption {0} (83

Experence (gains/iosses # {1
Change in asset celling, excluding amounts induded in interest expense
Amaunt d I other comprehansive lncome 3 )

Payment from plan:

Benefit payrmants {3} {1

Setlermnents . .
Tontritutions: - -

Emplogers “ -

Plan participants - -
Deletion an account of discantinuation of Jolnt Ventures - »
Addition dun to transfer of employee ~ -
Chifgations »t yaer end 0 17
{ify £l Valug of Plan Avsets For the year ended

L March31, 2023 March 31,2022

Plare sysets atyour heginolog, ot Talr vabue i 15
Interest income i )3
Amount recogalsed n profit or foss 3 3
Remezasurements
Actuarial {gain] / loss from change In demagraphic sssumption . .
Actuarial {gain) / Joss from change In finandlal assumption d
Return on plan assets, excluding amount included n interest income (0} 4
Experience {gains)flosses . -
Change in asset ceiling, excluding amounts included tn interest expense *
Amount recognlsed In other comprehensive Jacome {0} 9
£ffect of Exchange rate change
Payment from plan:

Benefit payments 2} {4}

Fund charges
Contributions:

Employers } 3

Plan participants
Deletion on sccount of discontinuation of Jolnt Ventures
Addition due to transfer of employee
Phan assets at year and, at falr value 13 18
(11} Assets and Liablfitles recognized in the Balance Sheet

For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 34, 2022

Present Value of the defined benefit obligations 20 17
Fafr value of the plan assets 19 18

Amount recognized us {asset)/iabllity (refer note 11} 3 i3




{iv) Dafined benuhit obligations cost for the year

Service Cost

interest Cost

Expected return on plan assets
Actuarlal {gain) / loss

Net defined beneftt obligations cost

{v} tnvestment dutalis of Plan Assets
The detalls of investmants of plan assets sre as follows:

LIC of india
Tatal

Wote: In respect of Employees Grateity Fund, composition of plan #ssets is not readily avaiiable from UC of
based on the srade st the beginning of the year on the retumn expected on lts existing portfolio,
expacted yield on the respective assets In the pestfolio during the year.

(v} Actwarts! ssumptions:

Discount Rate per snnum
Future salary Increases
Retirament age
Mortality rate
Attrition rate
Up to 30 years
From 31 to 44 years
Abave 44 years

Rota: of future derad in sctuadal

{vif) Expectad Contribution to the Fund In the next year

Gratulty

For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
2 2
1 1
{1} {1}
2 2)
4 B
For the year ented
sareh 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
100% 100%
100% 100%

India. The expected rate of retum on assats Is determined
slong with the estimated increment to the plan assels and

March 31, 2023 March 81,2022

7.36% TR
£.50% 6.50%
58 years 58 years

100% of IALM {2012-14)

3.00% 3.00%
2.00% 2.00%
100% 1.00%

fon takes account of inflation, sentority, promotion and other refevant factors such as supply end

For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

2




Friwmeler Motherson Cobiin Cagluwering Private tmited
CIN: U31308DL2007PTC162125
Notes to the financiat statemants for the year ended March 31, 2023

{0 s b Mo (INRY unless otherwiie stated)

18, Keuployer besedlt obilgations {Continug.}

vt} Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity of definsd benefit olggmm 1o changes in the !_gs!ﬂcd gdnc&a% Assumptions is ¢
Changs I Assumpiion Increase in Assnraption Ducresse In Assumption
Marchds (Marchal  dmpea March 31,2023 March 32, 2022 HmpAEE March31,2023  March 31, 2022
2073 2022
Discount Rate per annum 4.50% 0.50% Decrease by 1 1 Increase by {1 {11
Future salary Increases 4.50% 0.50% increase by 1 1 Dacrease by {1} {1

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change In assumption while holding all the other a:sumpilons coustam In practice, this fs unlikely to scour, and change in some of the assumplions
may be carrelated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obllg to the same method {present value of the delined benefit obligation
calcutated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applled as when calealating the deflned benefit, ability recognised in balance sheet.

Ix) Risk exposure

The gratulty schema is a final salary Defined Benefit Plan that provides for lump sum payment made on exit either by way of retly , death, voluntary The benefits are
{a} Interest rate risk: The defined benetit obligation caltulated uses a discount rate based on government bonds, if bond vield fall, the defined benefit obfigation will tend to incresse.

{b} Satary intiation risk: Higher than expected lncreases In salary witl increase the defined benefit obligation.

{c} Demographic tisk: This s the risk of variabifity of results due to unsy nature of d that Inclade mostality, withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these

£t foed

¥} Defined benefit Habliity and employer contributions
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit oblfgation s 17,22 years {March 31, 2022 : 17.22 years}
Expected benefit payments are as follows:

1ess than a year Betwaen Between Over § years Yotal
3-2 years 2-5 yours
March 31, 2023 Q 1 3 18 0
{Detined benetit obligation fgratuity}
March 31, 2022 & a 2 15 17
Defined benefit obligation {gratuity)

B, ODefined Contribution Schemes
The Company deposlts an amount determined a1 a fixed percentage of bask pay every month to the State administered Provident Fund and Eniployee State fnsurance (£56 for the benafit of the
Arnount recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss is as follows {Refer note 25}

Forthuyear weded
T Waare 31,2023 Mearch 33, 2623
Provident fund pald to the auvthorities & &
Employee state Insurance patd to the authorlties - o
fmployee state welfare fund paid # Q
to the authorities
L3 &

i sopspsisssnessicons ThiS space 1s left tlank




¥ b Cabln Englneering Private thulted
CiN: U31908DL2007PTCR62125
Notes to the financisl statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amaunts in Mp (INR] , unfess otherwise stated)

16 8. Deferred tax Habilities {Net)

Oeterred tox fabilitles

Property, plant and squipment and Intangible assets
Daferred tax assats

MAT credit

Employee benefit provisions

Fxpenses aliowable on payment basle

Total

Iy deferrad tax sysets/ (Hubliities}

Year ended March 31, 2023

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Yeor ended
Marsh 31,2023

{40} 136§
. 13
] b
1 [
{38} {22}

Others

Fotul defarved tax labilittes

Set-off of def d tax sssets to set-oif provish
MAT credit

Employae benefit provisions
Expenses allowable on payment basls
Total deferved tax svsuty

Net defarred tax asset / {Habliity)

Yesr ended March 31, 2022

Propenty, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

Others

‘Total deferved tax labitities

Set-off of deferred tax assets p to setolf provish
MAT eredit

Esnployee benefit provisions

Expenses allowable on sayment basle

Broaght forward losses and unabsarbed depreciation
Tolal defemed tax assety

Net defersed tax sssut / {lablfity}

Note:

Asat Aprit 01,2022 Chargs/ {ceadit}to  Charge/{credit}to other  MAT credit utliised Mearch 31, 2023
of Profit henashve incame
and Lote
{36} & s 2 {av}
{361 4 . p {03
13 {0} {13} k]
1 {0} (o) 1
) i & 3 3
34 {0} 10} 112 2
a2 4 ) (12} 38}
AsatApril 01,2021 Charge/ {craditj o Chamge/{creditj to other  MAY creditutilised  As ot Maech 31, 2022
$ of Prafit hensiva Income
sndLoss
{28} 8 * s {36}
8 .3 X : {30}
1% a . @ 13
3 1 1 . 1
16 3 3 4 14
{12 8 1 8 122}

1. In view of the Company’s past flnandlal performance and future profit projections, the Cumpany expects that it shall generate sulficlent future taxable lncome to fully recover the

deferved tax assets.

(o}
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Fritzmeler Motherson Cabin Engineering Private Limited
CIN: U31908DL2007PTCL62125

Notey to thy financlul sintaments for tha yesr ended Mareh 31, 2023

(Al sounts a M (INRE, unleis otharwise dated)

21, Revenue from operations

Sales of products

Finished goods
Within Indla
Qutside India

Total Gross Sales

Sale of services
Consulting engineering & other services
Other operating revenue:
Scrap sales
Job work Income
Total

22. Other Income

Liabllitles/provisions written back to the extent no longer required

Exchange fluctuation {net)

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost

Interest on Income tax refund

Provislon for doubtful debts and advances to the extent no longer required

Total

This space Is left blank intentic

For the year snded

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1,838 1,007
0 1
1,838 1,088
36 19
26 16
- 1
1,900 1,134
For the year eoded
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
. 0
- ¢
» i
" 1




¥ Moth Cahin Engh
ik U315080L2007PTC162125
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 33, 2023

fog Frivate Limited

{Al amounts In INR , unless otherwise stated)

23, Cost of materdals consuned For the year ended
Warch 31, 2023 March 3, 2022
Opening stock of raw materials 116 112
Add ¢ Purchases of raw materials 1,118 642
tess: Closing stock of raw materials {1823 {116}
Total 1,052 438
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
S
Particulars Steel & tubas Paints Others Yotat Steel & tubes Palnts Others Yotal
Amount Amount Amount Ampunt Arnaunt Amount Asmount Amount
Opening Stock ki 3 75 116 25 i 74 132
::::“"“ g the pratdety 715 50 753 1,118 s61 46 35 622
Tatal 813 5% 228 1,234 596 45 wef 754
Consumption during the 734 84 239 1,052 558 A48 34 €38
peaviousysar
Llosing Steck 24 $ B9 162 38 3 75 11¥;
24, Changes In inventory of finished goods & work In progress e BT e yar pivded

{increaself decranse In stocks

Stock at the opening of the year:
Finished goods
Work-in-progress
Stock in trade

Total A

Stock at the end of the year:
Fliishad goods
Waotk-in-progress
Stock in trade

Total8

{increase)/ decraase in stocks {A-B}

Wiarch 31,1023 Warch 31, 2002

3 -
142 98

144 96
. 1
136 143
130 184

14 {48}




f h Cabin Engineering Private timited
CIN: U31908DL2007PTC162125
Notes to the finencial stetemaents for the yesr ended March 31, 2023

{All atnounts In INR unless otherwise stated)

25. Employse benaifts expense

Salary , wages & bonus

Contribution to provident 8 other funds

Gratulty {Refer note 16}

Staff welfare and related expenses
Total

26, Finsnoe cost

Term toan and working capitat loan
nterast on statotory dues
friterast on lease Habilities

Totel

27. Other expenses

Electricity, water and fuel
Repalrs and maintenance:

“Machinery

~Butlding

~Othars
Consumption of stores and spare parts.
JOB WORK/Other Manufarturing Expenses

» Packing expenses
Lease rent {operating leases}
Rates & taxes
Insurance
Net foss on forelgn currency transaction
Donatlon
Contribution to 3R
Travelling
Fraight & forwarding
Consuiting Englneering charges
Liabliitles/provisions written back to the extent no longer required
Proviston for doublful debts and advances
Provision for pbsolete stock
Bank charges
Auditors remuneration (Refer note {a} batow}
Legal & professional expenses
Miscellaneous expenses
Totat

{8} Payment to suditors:

As Auiitor:
Statutory audit foes
timlted review fees
Tax &udit fees
Totet

Yor the yeae anded

March 31, 2023 March 31, 20
238 190
& 13
2 2
43 3
87 29

For the yeor anded
March a1, 2023 March 33, 2022
27 18
0 4
) 0
27 138
Fot the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
83 58
22 14
- 1
8 18
46 26
15 5
3 2
1 1
2 3
3 2
9 £3
- 0
H .
b 3
3 2
4 o
3 1
1 1
0 i
] [}
22 16
24 21
275 pyid

For the year endad
March 31,2023 March 31,2022

w10 O o

0
o
Q
i3




f Cabin Dngh ing Privats Unsied
CiN: UI1P08DL0DTPTCI62125
Notes tu the fiancal sateroeaty fur Use yeur endeld Marddo 31, 2023

{Al amounts n INR , unless othenwise stated)

3 & 38, Depreciation and amonization Expense for the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Depreclation on Property, plant and equipment 54 42
Deprociation on Right-of-use sssets 3 3
Total 5% £3

28. income tax expense For the your eaded

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

{a} lncome tux expense

Larvent tax

Current tax on profit for the year 49 14

Shontf{excess) provision for eartier years 1 {0)

Total current tax expense 50 14

Deterred tax {Refer note 10}

Decrease / {Increase} in deferred tax assets {net} -1 ]

{Decrease} / 1 in deferred tax fabili 5 8

Total deferred tax expense / {beneflt) 4 3
income tax sxpense 54 22
b} tation of tax exp and the Ing profit multiplied by India’s tax rate

For the year snded
March 3%, 2023 March 31, 2022

Protit befors income tax exponse 180 78
Tox ot india's tax rate of 27.82% 53 22
Tax effect of which are not d ble {taxable} In caloul taxable {net} . -0

Adjustments for earfley years 1 -0

Other adjustroents -
Income tax expense 54

29, Eprnings per share

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Ui ab ol a2 SR SRR S RS

a} Bastc

Net profit after tax avallable for equity shargholders 136
Welghted average number of enuity shares used to compute basie and diluted earnings per share (3} 56,000,000
Pasie earnings per share 272
Diluted Earnings per shate 272

56
50,000,000

112
112

{1} The Company does not have any potential squity shares and thus, welghted average number of shares for cunputation of basic EPS and diluted EPS remaing same.




Fritzmeler Motherson Cabin Englneering Private Limited
CIN: U31908DL2007PTC162125

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts in Mn {INR} , unless otherwise stated)

30. Falr value measurements
Financial Instruments by category

Financial assets
Investments

Trade recelvables

Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Financlal Liabllitles

Borrowings

Total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium
enterprises and

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro,
small and medium enterprises

Other financial liabilitles

Total financial Habiilties

I, Falr value hlerarchy

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fale value measurements

Financial asset

Financial nvestments at FVTOC!
Unquoted equity investments
Yotal

Non-current financial assets and Habllities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

Financial assets
Security deposits
Tatal financial assets

Financlal liabllitles
Borrowings
Yotal financlal liablilties

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
FVTPL FVTOCI Amaortised Cost FVIPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost
238 177
1 3
10 &
- - 249 . - 184
- 197 « 272
“ 21 . 18
- 111 « 114
" 10 . 7
- . 339 - - 412
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 tevel 2 Level3
March 31, 2023 WMarch 31, 2022
Level 1 ievel 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
10 6
- P 10 - . 5
a6 9
- . 4 " . 93

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and bank balances, short term borrowings, security deposits received, trade payables, capital creditors

and other current financial assets and liabllities are considered to be the same as falr value due to thelr short term maturities.

tevel 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments that have quoted price. The

fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial Instruments that are not traded In an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates, If all significant Inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,

the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant Inputs s not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in fevel 3. This Is the case for unlisted

equity securities included in level 3.
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Notes to the flnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 .
{All amounts in Mn (INR}, unless otherwise stated)

. Fair value of non current financial assets and Habllities measured at amortised cost

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount

Financlal Assets
Security deposits 10 10 6 [

10 10 & 6
Financlal Liabilities
Borrowings 46 46 93 a3

46 46 93 93
1. The fair value of security deposits carried at amortized cost is substantially same as their carrying amount
I, Long-term borrowings carry fixed rate of interest, the fair value Is substantially the same as the carrying amount

1il. Valuation technique used to determine falr value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
i. the falr value of the financlal Instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysls.
Iv. Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs {level 3)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for the periods ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:
Unquoted pquity Instrumaents

Asat April 01, 2021 1
Purchase during the year -
Disposals during the year *
Gatns/(losses) recognised in other comprehensive income {1}
As at March 31, 2022 -

Additions during the year N
Disposals during the year ®
Gains/{losses) recognised in other comprehensive income *
As at March 31, 2023 i
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Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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31. Finandlal risk management

The company Is the manufacturer of cabin and parts for off highway vehicles The Company, as an Internationally active supplier for the automobile
industry expose its business and products to various market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk, The Company’s global presence and decentralised
management structure with the main activities in the plants make necessary organised risk management system. The regulations, instructions,
implementation rules and in particular, the regular communication throughout the tightly contrelled management process consisting of planning,
cantrolling and monitaring collectively form the risk management system used to define, recard and minimise operating, financial and strategic risks.
Below notes explain the sources of risks in which the Company Is exposed to and how it manages the risks:

Market risk:

A Price risk:
Fluctuation in commodity price in global market affects directly and indirectly the price of raw material and components used by the Company in its
various products segment, Substantial pricing pressure from major OEMs to give price cuts and inability to pass on the increased cost to customers
may also affect the profitability of the Company.
The key raw material for the Company is steel and tubes. The Company has arrangements with its major custorers for passing on the price Impact,
The Company Is having arrangement with major customers for actualization of raw material price variations periodically.
The Company is regularly taking initiatives like VA-VE (value addition, value engineering ) to reduce its raw material costs to meet targets set up by its
customers for cost downs. In respect of customer nominated parts , the Company has back to back arrangements for cost savings with Its suppliers,

8 Forelgn currency risk:
The exchange variations In india has mainly impacted the imports, but however the Company has arrangements with its major domestic customers
for passing on the exchange Impact on import purchase and has considerably increased its export sales during last few years to attain natural hedge.
The Company also does selective hedging to hedge its risks associated with foraign currency.

The derivative instruments and unhedged forelgn currency exposure is as follows:

1) Particular of unbedged forelgn exposure as at the reparting date {Net pxg ¢ 1o forelgn curency sk}

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Payable / {Recelvable} payable / {Receivable}
Amount In Amountin Amount In Amount i
Foreign currency Rs. Forelgn currency Rs.
Eur 0 5 ¢ 8
usp 0 3 0 {2}
Eur 0 {0} (@ o)
GBP . . - -
{1} Sensitivity
The following tables d rate the itivity on unhedged forelgn currency BS10 AT bly possible change in foreign exchange rates,
with all ather variables held constant. The impact on the Company's profit before tax {s due to changes In the fair value of monetary assets and
fiabilities:
Change In Effect on profit
exchange rate before tax
March 31, 2023
USD against INR +5% 0
5% ©)
Euro against INR +5% [
5% 0
GBP against (NR +5% L
<55 »
March 31, 2022
USD against INR 5% o
5% ()
Euro agalnst INR +5% o
5% {0
GBP against INR +5% B
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(=

Interest rate risk: .
Interest rate risk Is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The company does not have long term borrowings with varlable rates. The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings
with variable rates, which exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk, During March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Company's
borrowings were at fixed interest rates, hence interest rate risk Is Insignificant

{1} Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Fixed rate borrowings 197 272

Total borrowings 197 272

An analysis by maturities is provided in Note {E {it}} Maturities of financlal labilities below,

{11} Sensitivity analysts
Since, borrowings carry fixed rate of Interest, there Is no sensitivity to profit and loss, Hence sensitlvity is not disclosed

Credit risk:
The credit risk Is the risk of financlal loss to the Company if 8 customer or counterparty to a financial instrument falls to meet its contractual
obligations towards the Company and arises principaily from the Company's receivables from customers and deposits with banking institutions. The

The Company has developed guidelines for the manag 1t of credit risk from trade recelvables. The Company’s primary customers are major indlan
sutomoblle manufacturers {OEMs) with good credit ratings, Non-OEM clients are subjected to credit assessments as a precautionary measure, and

“the adhereiice of all clients to payment due dates is monitored on an en-going basls, thereby practically eliminating the risk of default. The Company

has deposited Hquid funds at various banking institutions. Primary banking institutions are major indian and foreign banks. In long term credit ratings
these banking institutions are considered to be Investment grade. Also, no impairment loss has been recorded in respect of fixed deposits that are

Liguidity risk:

The liquidity risk encompasses any risk that the Company cannot fully meet its financial obligations. To manage the liquldity risk, cash flow farecasting
is performed in the operating divisions of the Company and sggregated by Company finance, The Company's finance monitors roliing forecasts of the
Company’s liquidity requiremsnts to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn
committed borrowing facilities / overdraft facilities at all times so that the Company does not breach borrowing limits or covenants {where

{1} Froancing arrangements
The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting perlod,

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2007

Floating rate
- Expiring within one year {cash credit and other facllities} 45 24

{1} Maturities of nanciad Habilities
The tables below analyse the Company's financial lisbilities Into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-
derivative financial labilities:

Year Ended March 31, 2023 Upto 1 year 1to5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 151 46 - 197
Total outstanding dues of micro 21 “ - 21
enterprises and small enterprises and

Total outstanding dues of creditors other B - 111
than micro enterprises and  small 111

enterprises

Other financial Babilities 6 4 . 10
Yotal non-derlvative Ushilities ) 289 50 333
Yeor Ended March 31, 2022 tipto § year 1t0 5 years Mare than 5 years Total
Borrowings 179 93 - 272
Total outstanding dues of micre 19 - ~ 18
enterprises and small enterprises and '

Total outstanding dues of creditors other 143 2 . 151
than micro  enterprises and  small

enterprises

Other financiat liabilities 5 - - 5

Total non-declvative Jiabilities 352 95 . 447
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32, Capital management

{a} Risk management
The Company's objectives when managing capltal Is to safeguard thelr abllity to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal capltal structure to reduce the cost of
capital. Consistent with others In the Industry, the Company monitors NET Debt to EBITDA ratlo I.e. Net debt {total borrowings net of
cash and cash equivalents) divided by EBITDA {Profit before tax plus depreciation and amortization expense plus finance costs).

The Company's strategy Is to ensure that the Net Debt to EBITDA Is managed at an optimal level considering the above factors. The Net
Debt to EBITDA ratios were as follows:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Net Debt 196 in

EBITDA 272 139

Net Debt to EBITDA 0.72 1.95
{b} Loan covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company is required to comply with certain financial covenants and the Company
has complied with those covenants throughout the reporting perlod.

{c} Dividends

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

On Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
Final dividend

Armount of dividend paid
Dividend per equity share

11 8
0.22 018
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33, Related Panty Disclosures

Related parties a5 per Section 2{76){1) & (11} of the Companies Act, 2013~ (Director and Key Managerial personnel (KNIP) or Bls/her relative):-

Name of relatives ufs 2{77} of the

i, No. Name of Director / KMP Compantes Act, 2013 Relatton
- Mrs, Renu Alka Sehgal Spouse
- Mr. Laksh Viman Sehgal Son
- Ms. Samriddhi Sehgal Son’s Wife
1 Mr, Vivek Chaand Sehgal 23, Vidhi Sehigal Daughter
- Mrs, Geeta Soni Sister
- Mrs. Nilu Mehra Sister
-Master Slddh Vaasav Sehgal Son Son's
- Master Ganan Yuvaan Sebgal Son Son's
2 Mr, Alay Bahi . 5
3 Mr, Georg Fritzmeler - »
4 Mr, Uwe Rastel - -
5 Ms, Neha Mahawar ) R
{iCompany Secretary]
2 Related parties os per Section 2{76}{1] of the Companies Act, 2013 - {a firm In which a dirsctor, per or his refative lsa p i
Si. No. Name of the Flrm Nature of Interest Name of Director
~Mr. V.C. Sehgal
3 Motherson {Partnership Firm) Directors are partner “Mr. LV. Sehgal
2 Vaaman Auto industry {Partnership Firm) Director Is partner -Mr. LV. Sehgal
3 Ganpati Auto Industries {Partnership Firm) Director is partner -Mr. LV, Sehgal

3 Related partles as per Section 2{76){iv) of the Companies Act, 2013 ~ (a private company In which a director or manager or his/her relative s a

member or divectork:
51 No. Narme of the Company Nature of Interest Name of Director
1 FRIGEL INTELLIGENT COOLING SYSTEMS INDIAPRIVATE Directo Alay Bahi
) UMITED 4 \
Director Afay Bahl
2. SOUTHCITY MOTORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Member (Relative of Director} Mr. V.C. Sehgal
3. |NIRVANA NICHE PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED Director AL
LV Sehgal is member
Marelli Motherson Automotive Lighting India Private Ltd,
4, Mr. VC Sehgal
{Formerly Magneti Maselli Motherson Auto System Pvt. {td.) Piyector 7. VC Sehga
5. Kyungshin industrial Motherson Pvt. Lid, Director Mz, VC Sehgal
6. Renu Farms Private Limited Director Mr. V.C, Sehgal
7. Advantedge Technology Partners Pvt. Ltd, Relative is member Mr. LV, Sehgal
Mr. V.G, Sehgal
8. Moon Meadows Private Limited Member Mr. LV. Seheal
. Mr. V.C. Sehgal
9. $ i 3] Memb
hri Sehgals Trustee Company Private Limited irector & Mr. LV, Sehgal
10. Advantedge Incubators Private Limlied Relative is a Director Mr. LV. Sehgal
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?31 Relatet Party Disclosures

Related partles as per Sectlon 2{76){1} & {it) of the Companies Act, 2013- {Director and Key Managerlal personnel (KMP) or his/her relative):-

Related parties as per Sectlon 2{76}{v) of the Companles Act, 2013 — {a public company In which 3 director, manager Is a director and holds
along with his relatives more than two perceat of Its pald-up share capital)y

51. No. Name of the Company Nature of Interest Name of Director
1 Motherson Auto Limited Dirsctor and Member Mr. Vivek Chaand Sehgal
2 Motherson Sumi Systerns Limited Director and Member Mr. Vivek Chaand Sehgal
3 Motherson Sumi Wirlng Indla Limited Director and Member Mr. Vivek Chaand Sehgal
i Director & Member and holds
4 Motherson Techno Teols Limited more than 2% shares along with Mr. V.C. Sehgal
5 MathersonSumi infotech & Designs Limited Director & Member and holds Mr. L.V, Sehgal
3 Motherson Lease Solution Limited indirectly { WOS of MAL} My, V.C Sehgal
7 Motherson Alr Travel Agencies Limited Member M. V.C. Sehgal
3 Related paries as per Section 2{76){vili} of the Companles Act, 2013 ~ body corporate which is 2
a. Holding Company NIL
b. Subsidiary Company NiL
& Associate Company NiL
d. Substdiary of a holding company to which it is also a subsidiary - NiL
&, @ A turer of th it
Motherson Surni Systems Limited {after merger of SAMIL into MSSL w.e.f 21-01-2022}
Samvardhana Motherson Global Management Services {a division of MS51}
. Holding Gmbh, Austratia k
Fritzmeier Engineering S..l
f. Other Promoter Grove Companies,

Samvardhana Motherson Global Carrlers Limited
Motherson Consultancies Service timited

Swarn Lata Motherson Trust
Fritzmeler S.R.0.
Fritzmeier Systems Gmbh & Co

Motherson Bergstrom HVAC Solutions Private Uimited

Anest lwata Motherson Private Ltd.

Anest lwata Motherson Coating Equipment Pyt Ltd

Motherson Air Travel Agencies Limited

Frigel Intelligent Cooling Systems India Private Limited
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i, Detalls of transactions, In the ordlesry course of

{a) Key p 1 comp

Shert-term employes benefits
Ms, Nehs Mahawar

Post-employment benefits

Long-term employee benefits

lat tgems, and bal

with related parties as mensioned in 38 {1} shove:

Termination benefits
Yotal compensation

{b) Transactions with refated parties

March 31, 2023

o

it
Nif
nit

March 31, 2022

PO At Bt NI el s e

@

Nit
it
Nit

o

o

SNo

Transaction

Parties

Partier montioned in 33 (3}

#aetios montlonodin 33{5)

March 31, 2023

March 33, 2022

March 31, 2023 | March 31,2022

Purchase of services

it

Motherson Sumi Systems Hiralted
s e Global M y

Services {a division of MSSLY

8 0

Sarnwardhana Motherson Global Carriers Umited

2

Muotherson Technotogy Services Umited {formerly
Koown as Motherson Suml infotech & Designs

Limited)

Matherson Alr Travel Agencles Umited

Mothersan Sumi Systams Lmited

Motherson Cansultancies Service Umited

Fritrmler Enginmetiog SRL

Motherson Auta Himited

Purchase of capital items

Motherson Technology Services Limited (formly
Known as Motherson Sumi tnfotech & Designs.

timhed)

45

Systematic Conscom Hmited

FRIGEL INTELUGENT COOLING SYSTEMS INDIA PVT
LID

Matsut Techinologins iy Lmhed

13

Purchase of goods

Motherson Sumi Systense Ldted

Motherson Technology Services Umited (forerely
Known as Motherson Sund Inforech & Desigrs
Limited]

Anest lwata Motharson Coating Equipment Pvt Ltd

Anest lwata Motherson Private (td,

Motherson Suri Wiing india Umited

Frtumeier Enginesioy S.11

s O e

Systematic Conscom Hmited

fritzmeler 5.R.0,

FRITZMEIER SYSTEMS GMBIH K CO

Motherson Tect gles & Engineerd

Samvardhana Motherson Heafth Sulution Urited

Motherson Bergstrom HVAL Solutions Private
Limited

Purchases of software

Mothersan Sumi Infotech 8 Designs Umited

Aelmbursement of expenses
ipaid

Motherson Auta Limited

Motherson Alr Teavel Agency Griblh

Maotherson Techno Tanls Lmited

h Lease Solutlon Limited

Swarn Late Motherson Trust

Samvardhana Motherson Global Management
Services {4 division uf MSSLY

Motherson Summl Systems Limtted (after merger of
SAMIL inte MSSL wef 21 617022}

{Ruimbuisetient of axpesses
Recelys

Mpotherson Lease Solation Limited

Hent paid

5 " 5

Global M 3
Services {a division of M55t}

Mothersan Auto Limbted

Wotherson Ale Travel Agencies timited

Motlierson Lease Solution Limited

Safe of goods

MS Global fndia Automotive Pvt.itd,

Fritemeter Systems Gmbh & Co

Fritzmeler 5,80,
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{c} Balances nt

$No

oy end

Transactlon

Parties

Partles mentioned in 33 {4)

Partles mentioned In 33(5)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Trade payables

ttotharson Sumi Systems Umited {after merger of
SAMIL Into MSSL w.e f 21-01-2022}

<. " Mtk Global M: "

{Services {2 divislon of MSSLE

fMotherson Technology Servicas Limited {formerly
Known 5 Motherson Sumf infotech & Designs Limited}

Sothersun Al Trave! Asencles Liited

Mothersun Auto Himited

fFritzineler Systeqs Grmbh & Co

Hothersan Sanl Wiring Iodia ttd

Motherson Me Yravel Ageocy Grabh

Motherson Sumi Systems dimited

Motherson Sumi Systems Umited {after merger of
SAMIL into NSt w.e f 21-01-2023)

Anest iwata Metherson Coating Eguloroent Pvi itd

SAMVARDHANA MOTHERSON GLOBAL CARRIERS
LUMITED

iMotherson Consittancles Service Limited

Sritumier haloeeriog SRU

win] o (o} o

Math Besg: HVAC Solut] Peivate Umited

Jrade receivables

Fritumeler Systemns Gobh & Co

Aoth hnology Senvices Urited (formedy
Known as Motherson Sumi Infotech & Designs Limited}]

Advance Recelyed

Ouposit pald to Supplier iMstherson Lease Solutlon Hasted

Fritzmeler SRO.

Capital Advance

o b

Systematic Carscont Limited

ther advances

Fritzmuler Systeros GmibH & Co

Moth Surnt Systers Limited (atter merger of
SAMIL intn MSSLwoe f 2(01»3_222)

Creditors for capital goods

MATSUL TECHNOLOGIES INDIA LIMITED
i&mmm Lunscom United

Provisten for other sdvances

Fritrnwder Systeas Grobh & Lo

i

]
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34, Segment Information:
Description of segments and principal activities

The Company is primarily in the business of manufacture of driver cabins for off-highway vehicles.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker "CODM" of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments . The Company has monthly review and forecasting procedure in place and CODM reviews the
operations of the Company as a whole, hence there are no reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 "Operating
Segments"

A. Information about geographical areas:
The following information discloses revenue from external customers based on geographical areas:

i} Revenue from external customers March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
India 1,900 1,133
Qutside India 0 1

1,800 1,134
ii) Segment Assets .

Total of non-current assets other than financial instruments, investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate
and deferred tax assets broken down by location of the assets, is shown below:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

India 614 652
Outside India s .

614 652

iii) Revenues from transactions with a single external customer amounting to 10 per cent or more of the Company’s
revenues is as follows

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Customer-1 580 370
Customer-2 586 233
Customer-3 233 244
Customer-4 201 111

1,610 958




Fritzmeier Motherson Cabln Engineering Private Limited
CIN: U31808DL2007PTC162125
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Mn {INR} , unless otherwise stated)

35, Assets hypothecated as security
The carrying amount of assets hypothecated as security for current and non-current borrowings are as follows:

Notes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Current:
First charge
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents b} i

Trade receivables 238 177
inventory 334 287
Other current assets 10 9
Total current assets hypothecated as security 583 474
Non Current:
Flrst charge
Freehold land 55 55
Buildings 346 364
Plant & Machinery 197 218
Other ftems of PPE 3 2
Total non-current assets hypothecated as security 601 639
Yotal assets hypothecated as securlty 1,184 1,113

36, Capital and Other Commitments
Capltal expenditure contracted at the end of the reporting perlod but not recognised as Hiabilities is as follows:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Property, plant and equipment
Estimated value of contracts in capltal account remaining to 30 -
be executed
Less: Advance Pald {5} -

Total 25 *




Fritzmeler Motherson Cabin Engl ng Private Limited
CIN; U31908D12007PTC162125
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts in Mn {INR} , unless otherwise stated)

37. Due to micro, small and medium enterprises

The Company has certain dues to suppllers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2005 (‘MSMED
Act’}, The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act is as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Actand
remaining unpaid as at year end

interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpsid
as at year end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year *

interest pald, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppllers registered
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, bayond the appointed day during the year

interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for
payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earller years - *
* The company has pald to some parties registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
beyond the period specified under Act as they sre not fulfilling the terms & conditions of supplies. The Company has not
pald/provided the interest for that delay,

21 18
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38. Other disclosures

A. Contingent liabilities:

a)
b}

{a)
{b)

). IMovement for provision for doubtiul debts

b}

<)

d).

Claims agalnst the G ledged as debts

pany not ack
Sales tax: Demand refating to TN VAT
Demands relating to excise and service tax matters:

against which appeal is to be filed {*)

agalnst which appeal filed (**}
{**} The said demand is covered by deposit of Rs.13,72,766 /-

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1 “
10 10

The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.
it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings and amount of cash outflows, If any, in respect of the above pending

resolution of the respective proceedings.

Disclosure under Ind AS 115

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers from April 01, 2018 which resulted in changes in
accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financlal statements where ever required. In accordance with the
transition provisions In Ind AS 115, the Company has adopted the new rules modified retrospectively .

Further disclosures given in refation to contracts with customers are as under:

Ansount

Opeaing balance {1st Aprll 2022}
Add: Additions

tess: Write off .
Less: Reversal M

Closing balance {318t Minch 2023}

]

The Company derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time and at a point in time in the following major product

fines and geographical regions:

Revenue by tategory March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Reveniue by major product lines
Sale of products 1,838 1,098
Consulting engineering & other services . 36, 19
Others 26 17
Total revenue from contract with customers 1,900 1,134
Timing of revenue recognition
At a polnt in time 1.800 1,134
Over time - -
Tota! revenue from contract with customers 1,800 1,134
ftevenue from contracts with s
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue reocgnised from
Amounts included in advance from customers at the beginning of . 1
the year
- 1
Particulars March 31, 2023 mMarch 31, 2022
Receivables 238 177
Contract liabilities 1 B
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Fritzmeier Motherson Cabin Englneering Private Limited

CiN: U31808012007PTC162125

Notes to the financial statemeats for the year ended March 31, 2023
Al amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

€. Corporate Social Responsibility:-
In terms of provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, a Corporate Soclal Responsibility {CSR) Commitiee of the Board of
Directors of the Company has been formed. The various projects and programs proposed to be undertaken has been outlined in the CSR
poticy of the company.
i, Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 1
it Amount of expenditure incurred 1
1i.Shortfall at the end of the year NiL
iv.Total of previous years shortfall NIL
v.Reason for shortfall NiL
vi.Nature of CSR activitles skill Development Project by Swars lata Motherson Trust, Noida

and Cleaning / Upliftment of Water Body st Singadivakkam village

vil.Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the
company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard 1
vill.Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering vtoa
contractual obligation, the movements 1o the provision during the year should be shown
separately. NiL

D. The Company has doae the transaction with only one pany ty, Muititech Systems industrial Automation Private Limited which
has been struck off U/S 248 of the comparies act 2013 and U/S 560 of the companies act 1956, of Rs.0.006 Mils and outstandng balance
of Rs.0.01 Mils as on 31st March 2023 .

E. The company has utifise the working capital limit in excess of Rs.5 crore in aggregate from banks on the basis of security of current assets,

The compnay duly filed the quarterly information statement to banks.




Pritzmeter Motherson Cabin Engineering Private Uimited
CIN: U31908DL2007PTC162125
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Mn {INR) , unless otherwise stoted}

39 Leases - lnd AS 116
Ind AS 116 Leases was notified on March 30, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto, Ind AS 116 is effective for annusl
periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019, Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to account for ali leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The
standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees —leases of low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with
alease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments {i.e., the lease lability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term {i.e., the right-of-use asset), Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. The Company has adopted ind AS 116
effective annual reporting period beginning April 01, 2019 by following modified retrospective approachand its Impact on financial statement presented
below:

Upon adoption of Ind AS 116, the company applied a single recognition and measurament approach for all leases except for short-term Jeases and leases
of low-value assets, Leases for the accounting policy beginning April 01, 2019, The standard provides specific transition requirements and practical
expedients, which have been applied by the company.

*Leases previously classified as finance leases

The company did not have any lease contract which are classifled as finance lease prior to April 01, 2019, The company did not change the Initial
carrying amounts of recognised assets and liabilities at the date of initial application for leases previously classified as finance leases (Le., the right-of-use
assets and fease Habilities equal the lease assets and liabliitles recognised under Ind AS 17}. The requirements of Ind AS 116 were applied to these leases
from Aprii 01, 2019,

*Leases previously ac d for as operating leases

The company recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilitles for those leases previously classified as operating leases, except for short-term leases and
{eases of low-value assets. The right-of-use assets for most leases were recognised based on the carrying amount as If the standard had always been
applied, apart from the use of incremental horrowing rate at the date of initial application. In some leases, the right-of-use assets were recognised based
on the amount equal to the lease liabilitles, adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued lease payments previously recognised. Lease liabilities were
recognised based on the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application,

The company also applied the avaiiable practical expedients wherein it:
» Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably simifer characteristics
« Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of inltla! application
« Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months of the date of initial application
« Excluded the Initial direct costs fram the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application
« Used hindsight In determining the lease term where the contract contained optlons to extend or terminate the lease

Impagt Assessment of lnd AS 116
{1} Impact on the statement of financial position {increase/(decrease}) as at 31 March, 2023

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Assets
Right - of - use assets 5 3
Deferred tax assets 1 1
Prepaid Rent/Expense - N
Yotal 6 4
Liabilities
Lease liabilities & 3
Deferred tax liabilities 1 i
Total 6 4
Net Impact on equity {0} {0}
{11} Impact on the statement of profit or loss (lncrease/(decrease}) for the year ended March 31, 2023;

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Lease rent {2} {1}
Depreciation expense 2 1
Finance Cost ¢ 4]
Deferred tax assets / (Liabilities) {0} {0)

(0) (0)




Fritxr h Cabin
CIN: USIS00DLR0I4PTCR 74514
Notes to the Ginanclal statemerts for the year endad March 33, 2023
{Allamounts in Mn INR] , unieis otherodse stated)

g Private Limited

40 Ratio Anxlysis wnd its slementy

1 Currant Ratlos
{Current Assets / Current Liabifities)

~

Dbt Equity Ratio
[{tong term borrowing including current rmatorities + short term borrowing) / Share
holder’s equity}

% Debt Service Coverage ratio
{{Eamings before tnterest, d
expense on short term and long term b ngs +
of long term borrawing during the yearl}

tax and pti ftems} / {interest
heduted principal rep

4 Retumn on Equity ratlo
{Net Profis after laxes / Averzge Shareholdar's Equity)

5 Inventory Yurnover ratie
{Net Sales / Average inventorles }

§ Trade Recelvable Tumover Ratlo
{Revenue from contract with custamers / Average trade recelvables)

7 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio
{Net Credit Purchase / Average trade payable )

B Het Capltal Turnover Ratlo
{Revenuz from contract with customers / Average working capital}

9 Net Profit ratio
{Profit / {loss} for the period / Revenue from opesatlons)

10 Return on Capital Employed
{Earnings before interest and taxes / Aversge capital ensployed)

11 Retum on Jnvestmant
Netincome / Cost of Investment

41 Amounts appesting as 2ero"0" In financials are belaw the rounding off norm adopted by the company,

42 Previous yesr figures bave been regrouped of rearranged fn arder to make them comparsble to the current year figures,

For and on behaif of the Board
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March 31,2023
Ratiox

189

3372

592

945

BAY

1097

March 33,2022
Ratios

139

042

1.96

209

4.31

545

382

10.24
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Resson for Change

Better Cutrent ratio due to tesser uthisation of
castiuradit and repayrent of kotrawings out of
profils

Long term borrowings ave repald and eash treditis
Tesswe wtiinad due 1o Incresss n tevetie and
profits

Due to Incresse in revenue and resoltant profits,
the debt sarvice coverage fad improved 33
compared with pravious year

Due tolrcrease In revenae, the profitis increased
as compared with previoos yese

increase In sales dus 1o growth of off High way
markst including tractors segment

intreese in sales due to growth of off fligh way
markst including tractors segment

fneresse in sales had influsnced the purchase,
therefore the turnover had lncreaved as compurad
with pravious year

Increase in sales due to grawdh of off High way
ket Inchudiog e sepment

Ingrease In Profits, due 1o intresse in soles bexsase
of grawth of of{ kighway market Inchuding tractors
segment

fncrease in Profits, due to Increase In sales because
of growth of off highway market including tractors
segment
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